Minutes
Nottingham Selectmen’s Meeting
October 21, 2013

6:30 PM Chair Rafter opened the meeting and asked all those present to stand for the Pledge of
Allegiance.

Members Present: Hal Rafter, Mark Carpenter and Mary Bonser

Others: Charles A. Brown — Town Administrator, Dawn Wirkkala — Secretary, Senator John
Reagan, Lynn Crowell

MANIFEST SIGNATURE:
Motion: by Ms. Bonser, second by Mr. Carpenter to approve the 10/21/2013 manifest.

Vote: 3 — 0 in favor.
OUTSTANDING MINUTES:

Motion: by Ms. Bonser, second Mr. Carpenter to approve the minutes of the October 7, 2013
meeting as amended.

Vote: 3 — 0 in favor.
Town Administrator Reports, Signature Items:

Police Department: The Chief is looking at options for a new police vehicle in 2014; he is
undecided between the Ford Taurus and another Ford Explorer. All the officers are very happy with
the Explorer; it is comfortable provides enough space with all the installed equipment, the gas
mileage is acceptable, and has extra safety and security features because it is specifically designed
for police use.

2014 Budget: Department budget information has been received and the Selectmen will need to
meet with Department Heads very soon; the Town has fallen behind in their budget schedule.

Fire Department: There are no reports from the Fire Chief.

Highway Department: The Road Agent remains on light duty and is using the time to take care of
administrative items and issues.

Recycle Center: There are no reports from Mr. Cinfo. Mr. Carpenter asked if the quote from the
roof replacement has been received. Mr. Brown responded two quotes are expected soon.

Town Office: Mr. Brown stated he signed the agreement to upgrade town building lighting fixtures
with PSNH but funding won’t be available until April 2014. The savings from the lighting
upgrades will help pay for the installation expenses. Dowling Corporation has inspected all town
building heating systems and would like to enter into an annual inspection and maintenance
agreement with them starting in January 2014. Mr. Brown stated he is very happy with them, they
have provided quick and thorough service.

Board of Selectmen Department/Board/Committee Reports:

CIP Committee: Ms. Bonser reported the committee has requested current debt service information
and asked about the Assessing funds account type and why it is a Capital Reserve Fund (CRF) and
not a Special Revenue Fund? Mr. Brown stated the funds are in a CRF and will be used to pay for
the NH requirement of updating values once every five years. The Selectmen can expend the funds
in either account but will look into why it was created as a CRF. However, there are minimal
differences in the statute language between a CRF and Special Reserve Fund.

Budget Committee: Ms. Bonser reported she attended the Budget Committee meeting for Mr.
Carpenter. The committee asked to receive a summary of the amounts received from the Land Use
Change Tax, also asked when the Rooms & Meals Tax (R&M) revenue funds would be received

1 Approved as Amended 11/18/2013



Minutes
Nottingham Selectmen’s Meeting
October 21, 2013

and gave a reminder that the first draft Town budget will be reviewed at the November 14™
meeting.

Mr. Brown stated the R&M and Highway Block Grant funds will be received later in the year and
the first draft of the budget will be ready for November 14",

Planning Board: Chair Rafter reported the board held a work session meeting with Mr. Mettee to
review the proposed four or five Master Plan items the board has decided to work on. The majority
of discussion had to do with the Open Space ordinance and the suggested change of making it a
mandatory requirement. Current correspondence regarding a mandatory requirement indicates it is
unconstitutional; however the board will continue to try and draft language for a conservation
requirement because it is considered important and is worth looking into.

Mr. Carpenter asked about the rights of the owner versus a mandatory land requirement. Ms.
Bonser stated she feels the requirement may be confiscating lands from land owners. Ms. Bonser
stated she believes if a Town board with a Selectman Representative on it is going to set a specific
policy the Selectman Representative vote, regarding that policy, should be the discussed and
reviewed opinion of the entire Board of Selectmen and not just the single Representative. Ms.
Bonser asked to discuss the policy changes suggested by the Planning Board at the next Selectmen’s
meeting.

Mail/Correspondence/Bills/Etc.

Mr. Brown reported information regarding the newly separated duties of the Local Government
Center, Property Liability Trust, NH Municipal Association and Health Trust can be reviewed at the
convenience of the Selectmen. The County tax warrant has been received in the amount of
$593,843.00, which is close to last year, and signatures are due Tuesday, December 17th, 2013.

The issues with the tax rate setting delay appeared to be resolved; however appointments are still
not being scheduled; the NH Department of Revenue is still waiting for required NH Department of
Education information. Many towns have expressed concern about meeting obligations with the
delayed mailing of tax bills and receiving payments; there are payments for the County Tax and
School District, in addition to regular bills and payroll. If towns do not have enough funds available
the County and other entities can charge penalties for late payments. The Selectmen expressed their
objection to any County fines because it is a state agency that is causing the delay.

Mr. Carpenter asked what will happen if tax payments aren’t received timely and don’t have the
funds. Mr. Brown stated a tax anticipation loan will be needed in order to make required payments.
Mr. Brown stressed that the delay in setting the tax rate is not because of the SAU. Senator Reagan
stated the delay is because of a change in what year must be used to estimate the number of students
to establish the adequate funding costs; the agency did not start the calculations soon enough.

Mr. Brown reported he received information regarding health insurance and short term disability
increases, with the expected approximate 7.9% increase in insurance expenses. Mr. Carpenter
stated while the amount is better than the 19% from the prior year, 7.9% is still an unacceptable
amount.

Mr. Brown reported fund transfer from the bookkeeper need to be signed, and one salary history
needs to be initialed.

Motion: by Chair Rafter, second by Ms. Bonser to transfer of $667.00 from each of the impact fee
accounts to the General Fund for a total of $3,335.00 representing the Fire Department portion of
the impact fee.

Vote: 3 — 0 in favor.

2 Approved as Amended 11/18/2013



Minutes
Nottingham Selectmen’s Meeting
October 21, 2013

Motion: by Chair Rafter, second by Ms. Bonser to transfer $766.46 from the Conservation Fund to
the General Fund.

Vote: 3 — 0 in favor.

Motion: by Chair Rafter, second by Mr. Carpenter to transfer the amount of $15,429.97 from the
Ambulance and Equipment Special Revenue Fund to the General Fund to pay for nine months of
ambulance operation use in 2013.

Vote: 3 — 0 in favor.

Motion by Chair Rafter, second by Mr. Carpenter to transfer the amount of $29,769.84 from the
Ambulance and Equipment Special Revenue Fund to the General Fund to pay for 2012 Town
Meeting Warrant Article #15 (new defibrillator).

Vote: 3 — 0 in favor.

Motion by Chair Rafter, second by Mr. Carpenter to transfer the amount of $136,844.00 from the
Ambulance and Equipment Special Revenue Fund to the General Fund to pay for 2012 Town
Meeting Warrant Article #14 (new ambulance).

Vote: 3 — 0 in favor.

APPOINTMENTS:

7:00 pm: NH Legislator Discussion — Mr. Brown reported information was received from
Representative Mann indicating she had a conflict and would not be able to attend, but her email
reviewed the proposed legislative action regarding groundwater law changes. Representative
Danais and Duarte declined the invitation, Representative Tasker did not respond. The Selectmen
welcomed Senator Reagan.

Senator Reagan stated there would be no penalties with the delay in setting the tax rate; the
Counties may end up having a harder time with the delay than the local municipalities. A bill has
been submitted to change the timing of posting hearing dates between the SB2, Budget Committee
and Towns to make the complicated timing issues easier to resolve.

Senator Reagan stated the LSR for groundwater changes has been received and new language is
being drafted with intent to have the groundwater permit expire when the building permit expires.
There may be a battle regarding the change during legislative meetings if there is a major objection
from the NH Department who oversees the issue.

Chair Rafter reviewed DES indicates there are large and complex requirements that USA Springs
must meet before the permit could be considered for renewal. Senator Reagan stated NH DES
indicates they are required to follow the Federal EPA requirements, ultimately because it provides
them with more federal funding.

Senator Reagan stated he is now the Chair of Joint Legislative Committee for Administrative Rules
(JLCAR), which is the committee that approves all NH department rule changes, and gives him a
little leverage over some of the state agencies.

Chair Rafter asked if there were any other changes that might be coming. Senator Reagan stated the
state budget has been steady, there are no new taxes and if additional funds are received there is
always the question of holding the excess in a rainy day fund or using them to provide help through
Health and Human Services. There is no plan to currently assist with retirement payments.

Mr. Brown stated R&M revenue has remained steady but the Highway Block Grants funds have
been decreasing over the last couple of years. Ms. Bonser stated the Budget Committee asked if
revenue amounts will remain as proposed; it was expected they would.

3 Approved as Amended 11/18/2013



Minutes
Nottingham Selectmen’s Meeting
October 21, 2013

Senator Reagan indicated the deadline for House bill submission was a couple of weeks ago, the
Senate is this Friday. The mood of the legislators is currently good.

Mr. Carpenter asked how the legislators will deal with the Affordable Care Act. Senator Reagan
stated things are moving along well, an extension for Medicaid expansion rules of operation will be
established during special session and there is the expectation that an extended simultaneous session
will take place to determine how the changes will be determined to prevent a significant future bill.

The Selectmen thanked Senator Reagan for attending.

7:30 pm: Crowell Easement Legal Opinion — Chair Rafter stated additional information was
received from town counsel regarding the Selectmen’s inability to deed property without a Town
Meeting vote. Ms. Crowell stated she is disappointed, understands why the entire town must accept
the easement, but it isn’t helpful in her current situation.

Ms. Crowell asked if the selectmen were allowed to lease the portion of land the garage is
physically located on or can there be any type of consideration that when the Town accepted the
road as a public road did it include the road in its current conditions? Ms. Crowell stated she
understands this is her problem, but she does need some type of answer because she will have
limited time to submit title information to the new buyer. In addition, she would be willing to
submit a citizen petition warrant article if the Selectmen did not want to do so.

Mr. Brown stated the Selectmen can choose to submit a warrant article if they choose but will let
her know if she should submit a warrant article and the law is clear that it does not allow the
Selectmen to provide any lease or easement without citizen approval at Town Meeting.

Mr. Carpenter stated he understands the idea about the conditions of road acceptance and does that
acceptance include all of the faults present at the time of acceptance and asked to contact the LGC
to determine if this consideration is a possible solution.

Chair Rafter asked if the Town accepts a road, does the town own the land under the road by deed
or only as a right of way. Mr. Brown stated there are multiple scenarios, with and without deeds,
where the Town owns the land under the road, owns only a ROW for land owned by the
surrounding land owners, and where the road and land is owned solely by the land owners.

It was stated if the Town only owns the ROW, the land is then still owned by the homeowner and
there is a question about who actually owns the land at this time, because of when the transfers took
place. Ms. Crowell asked about the possibility of consideration of the Adverse Possession law.

The Selectmen asked Mr. Brown to contact the LGC to clarify some of the issues and determine
who owns the land. Ms. Crowell should contact her attorney about using the Adverse Possession
law, which Mr. Brown stated is not applicable for Town owned property.

General Business:

2014 Budget Discussion — Mr. Brown stated much of the individual department information has
been received and final steps for the spreadsheets will take place this week. Ms. Bonser stated the
School Board has indicated they will have a 1.9% increase over the prior year budget.

Discussion took place about the percentage of increase for an employee cost of living increase.

The Selectmen indicated they wanted to establish actual insurance costs prior to determining a cost
of living increase. Mr. Brown stated he is confident with the 7.9% insurance increase, which equal
an approximate $20,000.00 budget increase. Mr. Brown stated he expects the new health insurance
quote to fall in line with the LGC amounts and if it is minimally less, swapping would not be worth
the administrative hassle with new forms and processing.

4 Approved as Amended 11/18/2013



Minutes
Nottingham Selectmen’s Meeting
October 21, 2013

Mr. Brown reminded the Selectmen the Town is grandfathered in its existing policy and offering
50% deductible payment, but that offer is no longer allowed by insurance companies.

Mr. Brown stated he would present the first draft of the budget to the Budget Committee.
Mr. Carpenter asked about warrant articles and the selectmen would receive the information.

Ms. Bonser reported the School Board is considering all options to decrease crowding at the school,
including considering tuitioning out the middle school students and asked if the Selectmen want to
offer using the back area in the Town Offices for kindergarten classes. Mr. Brown stated that
option was reviewed in the past and the renovation costs would be too high. Ms. Bonser suggested
the access solution to the back of the building may be through the ball fields once they are moved to
the Marsten property; the Selectmen should consider planning to work the renovation and Marsten
property plans together.

Chair Rafter asked if the structural engineer report on the back rooms has been received. Mr.
Brown stated it has been received and will be scanned and emailed to the Selectmen. The engineer
reports the building is in better shape than expected, but it will need a new roof structure. The
Selectmen asked that Mr. Brown draft an RFP for roof repairs to determine if continuing
renovations will be cost effective; to try and get a better idea of actual repair and renovation costs
with no or minimal additional expense.

Discussion took place about how the Town should proceed with renovation to the building. The
Selectmen stated establishing what the space will be used for must be determined before making
any decisions to move forward with renovations. Suggestions for use including talking to the
School Board, Recreation Department, providing access to the back area through the ball fields
when they are moved to the Marsten farm, consideration should be given about making it a private
or commercial leased space, preschool or kindergarten classes could be moved to the area. The
Selectmen agreed they want an estimate on the cost to repair the roof and renovating the space for
general use.

Upcoming Agenda — Ms. Bonser requested time to discuss upcoming PB ordinance changes.

Motion: by Ms. Bonser, second by Mr. Carpenter that for cluster developments, whether it is found
to be legal or not legal the word “mandatory” be removed from the land conservation requirement
and it shall be the opinion and vote of the Selectmen ex-officio position to the Planning Board.

Chair Rafter asked for additional clarification regarding the rational of the motion. Ms. Bonser
stated it is an unnecessary regulation and many developers already take advantage of conservation
to decrease the road development cost, and there may be people with a personal disagreement and
aversion to the requirement. Mr. Carpenter stated fundamentally he does not believe the
government has the right to dictate what an owner is allowed to do with their property; to develop
the property from either a commercial or individual purpose. If there is wording for optional
incentives to save land for conservation, it is then up to the owner to decide.

Chair Rafter stated a town vote will ultimately be required for any changes and implementation.
Ms. Bonser stated she objects to having a mandatory requirement.

Ms. Bonser called the vote for the motion for the Selectmen to oppose using the word mandatory
conservation in cluster development changes.

Vote: 2 — 1 in favor. Chair Rafter opposed.

The Selectmen decided the Board of Selectmen should discuss and establish an opinion for the ex-
officio member to present regarding suggested policy changes before any board votes on the policy
change.

5 Approved as Amended 11/18/2013



Minutes
Nottingham Selectmen’s Meeting
October 21, 2013

Rymes Meeting: Mr. Brown asked the Selectmen when they wanted to meet with Rymes and their
attorney. After discussion the Selectmen stated Rymes and his attorney should identify the meeting
discussion topics and suggested meeting during the regular Board of Selectmen November 4, 2013
meeting. If a meeting can’t be held on November 4™ then alternate dates should be suggested. The
Selectmen agreed the meeting should be public, unless it is specifically with counsel.

Meeting Request: Mr. Brown reported a request has been received from Mr. Reid to meet with the
Selectmen and discuss culverts. The Selectmen asked for more details about the culverts to be
prepared at the next meeting.

ADJOURNMENT: Having no further business,

8:19 PM Motion: by Mr. Carpenter, second by Ms. Bonser to adjourn.
Vote: 3 — 0 in favor.

Respectfully Submitted,

Dawn Wirkkala

6 Approved as Amended 11/18/2013




<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /None

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice



